

































































Peruvian government and members of the tender committee for the project. In or about 2009,
ODEBRECHT won the contract, valued at approximately $400 million. ODEBRECHT made
the corrupt payments, which were approved by Odebrecht Employee 6, with unrecorded funds
from the Division of Structured Operations.

K. Venezuela

69. In or about and between 2006 and 2015, ODEBRECHT made and caused
to be made approximately $98 million in corrupt payments to government officials and
intermediaries working on their behalf in Venezuela in order to obtain and retain public works
contracts.

70.  ODEBRECHT typically used intermediaries to negotiate contracts with
government officials on behalf of the company. ODEBRECHT understood that these
intermediaries would pay bribes to government officials on behalf of the company in order to
influence the allocation of resources to ODEBRECHT projects, to obtain confidential pricing
and bidding information in connection with those projects, and to obtain and retain contracts for
those projects. Generally, these intermediaries charged a percentage of the contract price in
connection with their work on behalf of ODEBRECHT.

71.  For example, ODEBRECHT paid an intermediary to help it obtain
contracts with a Venezuelan state-owned and state-controlled company. During the negotiations,
the intermediary made it clear that the money would be used to pay a bribe in exchange for
obtaining certain service agreements and amendments, and that the intermediary represented
various directors of the state-owned and state-controlled company. ODEBRECHT paid the

intermediary approximately $39 million.
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VII.  Obstruction of Justice

72.  Inor about 2014, Brazilian law enforcement authorities began an initially
covert investigation into corruption related to Petrobras, called Lave Jato or “Operation
Carwash.” Thereafter, related investigations were launched in the United States and
Switzerland. After ODEBRECHT became aware of Lavo Jato and related investigations, certain
individuals — including Odebrecht Employee 1 and employees and executives involved in the
Division of Structured Operations — took steps to conceal or destroy evidence of criminal
activities, and to hinder the various investigations. These steps included, but were not limited to,
a directive from Odebrecht Employee | to ODEBRECHT employees to delete records that might
reveal illegal activities.

73.  Furthermore, in or about mid-2015, Odebrecht Employee 4 attended a
meeting in Miami, Florida, with a consular official from Antigua and an intermediary to a high-
level government official in Antigua. In order to conceal ODEBRECHT’s corrupt activities,
Odebrecht Employee 4 requested that the high-level official refrain from providing to
international authorities various banking documents that would reveal illicit payments made by
the Division of Structured Operations on behalf of ODEBRECHT, and agreed to pay $4 million
to the high-level official to refrain from sending the documents. Odebrecht Employee 3 made
three payments of 1 million Euros on behalf of ODEBRECHT in order to secure the deal. The
contemplated fourth payment was never made.

74. Furthermore, in or about January 2016, after Lavo Jato and the
investigations by United States and Swiss authorities were well-known to ODEBRECHT,

employees and/or agents of ODEBRECHT intentionally caused the destruction of physical
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encryption keys needed to access the My WebDay system, which contained evidence relating to
the bribery scheme. As a result of these actions, significant evidence from the My WebDay

system was rendered inaccessible.

CONSPIRACY TO BRIBE FOREIGN OFFICIALS

75.  The allegations contained in paragraphs one through 74 are realleged and
incorporated as though fully set forth in this paragraph.

76. In or about and between 2001 and 2016, both dates being approximate and
inclusive, within the Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendant ODEBRECHT
S.A., together with others, did knowingly and willfully conspire to commit offenses against the
United States, to wit: as a person other than an issuer or domestic concern, through its employees
and agents, while in the territory of the United States, did corruptly commit acts in furtherance of
an offer, payment, promise to pay, and authorization of the payment of any money, offer, gift,
promise to give, and authorization of the giving of anything of value to a foreign official, a
foreign political party, a foreign political party official, a foreign political candidate and to a
person, while knowing that all or a portion of such money and thing of value would be and had
been offered, given, and promised to a foreign official, a foreign political party, a foreign
political party official and a foreign political candidate for purposes of: (a) influencing acts and
decisions of such foreign official, foreign political party, foreign political party official and
foreign political candidate in his or her official capacity; (b) inducing such foreign official,
foreign political party, foreign political party official and foreign political candidate to do and
omit to do acts in violation of the lawful duty of such official; (c) securing any improper

advantage; and (d) inducing such foreign official, foreign political party, foreign political party
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official and foreign political candidate to use his or her influence with a foreign government and
agencies and instrumentalities thereof to affect and influence acts and decisions of such
government and agencies and instrumentalities, in order to assist ODEBRECHT S.A. and its
employees and agents in obtaining and retaining business for and with, and directing business to
ODEBRECHT S.A. and others, contrary to Title 15, United States Code, Section 78dd-3.

77.  In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect its objects, the defendant
ODEBRECHT S.A. and at least one of the defendant’s co-conspirators committed and caused to
be committed, within the Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, at least one of the
following:

OVERT ACTS

a. In or about 2006, ODEBRECHT S.A., at the direction of Odebrecht
Employee 1, established a secret financial structure that was used by ODEBRECHT S.A. and its
subsidiaries, in part, to pay bribes to foreign officials, foreign political parties and foreign
political candidates, as well as intermediaries on behalf of ODEBRECHT S.A. and several of its
subsidiaries.

b. On or about December 22, 2006, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused
$10,935,066.85 to be transferred from one of the New York Accounts to the S&N Account.

c. On or about December 12, 2007, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused two
payments of $1,271,964.00 each, totaling $2,543,928.00, to be transferred from one of the New

York Accounts to the S&N Account.
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d. On or about December 12, 2007, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused two
payments of $1,898,963.00 each, totaling $3,797,962.00, to be transferred from one of the New
York Accounts to the S&N Account.

e. On or about December 16, 2009, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused
$6.583,828.14 to be transferred from one of the New York Accounts to the Arcadex Account.

f. On or about December 24, 2009, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused
$6,583,828.14 to be transferred from one of the New York Accounts to the Arcadex Account.

2. On or about December 24, 2009, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused two transfers
of $329,191.42 each, totaling $658,382.84, to be made from the Arcadex Account to the Second
Arcadex Account.

h. On or about March 25, 2010, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused $434,980.00 to
be transferred from the Second Arcadex Account to a bank account controlled by Brazilian
Official 2, then an executive at Petrobras.

1. In or about October 2010, ODEBRECHT S.A. directed more than $40
million in bribes to be paid to certain Brazilian political parties from its Division of Structured
Operations in order to secure a contract for the provision of various environmental and security
certification services for Petrobras abroad.

f: In or about and between 2010 and 2014, ODEBRECHT S.A. directed
bribe payments of more than $20 million to be made to Brazilian Official 4, a high-level state
elected official in Brazil, and other foreign officials, in order to ensure continued work on a

transportation project.
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k. In or about 2011, ODEBRECHT S.A. directed bribe payments of
approximately $9.7 million to be made to a political party designed by Brazilian Official 5, a
high-level official within the legislative branch of government in Brazil, in exchange for the
party’s influence in the continuation of a construction project in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.

1. On or about May 23, 2011, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused $1,000,000.00 to
be transferred from the S&N Account to a bank account controlled by Brazilian Official 1, then
an executive at Petrobras.

m. On or about June 6, 2011, ODEBRECHT S.A. caused $1,012,500.00 to be
transferred from the S&N Account to a bank account controlled by Brazilian Official 1.

n, In or about and between December 2013 and late 2014, ODEBRECHT
S.A. directed bribe payments of approximately $6 million to be made to a high-level official of a
Mexican state-owned and state-controlled company in exchange for the official assisting
ODEBRECHT with winning a project.

0. In or about 2015, Odebrecht Employee 4 attended a meeting in Miami,
Florida with the agent of a high-level government official in Antigua, and agreed to pay $4

million to the government official, if the government official refrained from providing banking
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records revealing illicit payments made by the Division of Structured Operations to international

authorities.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 and 3551 et seq.)
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